
Page 1 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 
 March 20, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Fran McMahon, Chair 
  Mark Olson, Vice Chair 
  Brendan McNamara, Clerk 
  Tracy Emerick 
  Mary-Louise Woolsey, Selectman Member 

Keith Lessard 
  Mark Loopley 
  Jamie Steffen, Town Planner 
 
ABSENT:    
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Chairman McMahon began the meeting at 7:00 p.m. by introducing the Board members 
and leading the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 
 

II. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Steffen asked if there were any nominations for Chairman.  
MOTION by Mr. Lessard to nominate Mark Olson as Chairman.  Mr. Olson accepted. 
SECOND by Mr. Emerick.   
VOTE:  5 – 0 – 2 (Olson abstained & Woolsey was not present)  MOTION PASSED. 
 
MOTION by Mr. McMahon to nominate Brendan McNamara for Vice Chair.   Mr. McNamara 
accepted. 
SECOND by Mr. Loopley. 
VOTE:  5 – 0 – 2 (McNamara abstained & Woolsey was not present)    MOTION PASSED.   
 
MOTION by Mr. McNamara to nominate Fran McMahon as Clerk.  Mr. McMahon accepted. 
SECOND by Mr. Lessard   
VOTE: 5 – 0 – 2 (McMahon abstained & Woolsey arrived).  MOTION PASSED.   
 
III. ATTENDING TO BE HEARD  

 
IV. CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 
13-002     20 Keefe Avenue   (continued from 1/2/13 & 2/6/13 & 2/20/13)                    
Map: 290    Lot: 68 
Applicant:  Donik Corp. 
Owners of Record: Twenty Keefe Ave Realty Trust 
Site Plan & Special Permit:  Construction of 8-unit residential condominium complex 
on .67 acre parcel with associated driveway & parking areas. 



Page 2 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 
 March 20, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 Mr. Joseph Coronati of Jones & Beach Enginners and Attorney Peter Saari appeared.  
Mr. Steffen stated that this matter was continued to this meeting because the Planning Board 
gave notice to the landowners on Keefe Avenue in order to receive input on the proposed 
change in snow plowing as part of the development.  He also stated that it was continued 
because we are awaiting review and approval of the proposed agreement for the snow 
plowing and trash collection and recycling services from the Board of Selectmen. He noted 
that it was to be on this past Selectmen's meeting (March 18th) agenda, but is now on their 
agenda for the 25th of March. 
 Mr. Coronati discussed the changes to the plans.  He stated they are at the Planning 
Board's discretion on how to move forward.  They need a recommendation from the Planning 
Board.  Mr. Olson asked if they received the responses from Mr. Jacobs of the DPW and Mr. 
Steele from the Fire Department.  Mr. Coronati said they had received the email from Mr. 
Steele with his comments on the revised plans.  Attorney Saari stated that little will be 
accomplished at this meeting.  He noted that there is no word back from the Town Attorney.  
Mr. Steffen commented that he received an email from *James Lavezzo, owner of 14 Keefe 
Avenue.  They asked for information on the development and how it would affect them.  He 
also asked if Keefe Avenue would be brought up to an acceptable standard.  Mr. Steffen read 
the email and he said he responded to Mr. Lavezzo that it is now in the Selectmen's hands as 
far as the services for the street.  Mr. Loopley noted the proposed drainage improvements and 
bringing the road up to certain standards.   The agreement between the developer and the 
Town will be reviewed by the Selectmen.  Mr. Loopley stated that the Fire Department did 
not have trouble with the hammerhead, but now DPW does.  He further stated that the 
Planning Department can't make a decision on that.  Mr. Olson noted that the width of the 
hammerhead was the problem i.e. of the travel lane.  Mr. McNamara asked where the snow 
will be placed.  Mr. Coronati responded that the plows would wing it to the right.  Most 
residences down there are seasonal.  Each unit owner will be responsible for their own 
driveway.  Mr. Coronati said it would get plowed like every other road in the Town.   
 Ms. Woolsey discussed Attorney Saari's letter to the Board of Selectmen and the 
documents.  She stated that she spoke with Town counsel and she feels the sensible thing to 
do is to have the Planning Board grant a conditional approval and forward to the Selectmen 
for their consideration at their March 25 meeting.  Then, the trash, snow plowing and cul-de- 
sac issues can be worked out from there.  Mr. Lessard commented that this is not how it is 
usually done.  He stated we need approval from the Selectmen first on the trash and snow 
removal issues.   
 Mr. Steffen stated that the Planning Board can comment on provisions of private road 
statute - access from a public road.  It's a private road, but the Town is servicing it right now.  
Ms. Woolsey said snow plowing and trash collection may not be the primary consideration 
and discussed the need for the Selectmen to authorize the issuance of building permits.  She 
commented that the Selectmen will not make a decision until they get a conditional approval 
from the Planning Board.  Previous approvals have expired. 
  
PUBLIC 



Page 3 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 
 March 20, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 Gary Hopkinson of 16 Keefe Avenue appeared.  He stated he would like to know what 
the debate is about.  He has no problem with the proposed building on the street.  The 
proposal is not trying to jeopardize the trash collection for his street per Mr. McNamara.  Mr. 
McMahon stated that is what the Planning Board “thinks”.  Mr. Hopkinson stated he pays a 
lot in taxes and he hopes the trash is picked up.  Mr. Hopkinson discussed safety issues and 
plowing.  He stated that plowing is really only one swipe and then the plow backs out.   
 
BOARD 
 
MOTION by Mr. Emerick to conditionally approve the project relative to what the Planning 
Board has jurisdiction over.  The rest will need to go to the Board of Selectmen. 
SECOND by Mr. Loopley. 
Mr. Lessard asked about trash for the proposed development.  He asked where the dumpster 
would be located and where the containers would be stored.  Mr. Coronati stated that there is 
private trash pick-up planned at each home.  He further stated they have to keep their trash in 
the house and there is no plan utilize a dumpster.  Mr. Lessard asked if a note should be on 
the plan stating that there will not be a dumpster on site and that trash should be placed out in 
front of each unit.  Mr. Lessard asked for the name of the vendor.  Mr. McMahon wanted to 
know who would be picking up the trash.  Ms. Woolsey noted that they may have recycling 
as well.  It was stated that if they do not recycle, they will have to dispose of it on their own.  
Mr. Loopley stated that he thinks the trash and plowing services that the Town provides is a 
more important issue than the Selectmen issuing building permits.  Mr. Lessard asked what is 
meant by “curbside”.  He feels that they should clear that up before going to the Board of 
Selectmen.  
 Mr. Coronati will add that trash collection will be private for this development in Note 
#11 and that there will not be a dumpster.  Ms. Woolsey said it should state trash and 
recycling.  Mr. Lessard stated he agrees it should state trash and recycling.   
 Mr. Steffen commented on the proposed conditions of approval and stated that we need 
the appropriate impact fees, the Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Plan (O&M Plan) 
and recording fees and six copies of the final plans.  He stated that the impact fee would be 
approximatelt$1,898 per unit whioch is the multi-family residential amount. 

Mr. McNamara asked about having a cul-de-sac versus a hammerhead turnaround.  Mr. 
Emerick responded that it is not a subdivision.  Mr. Loopley responded by saying he doesn't 
understand Mr. Jacobs' memorandum as the Town already got approval of the hammerhead 
design from the Fire Department.  Mr. McMahon noted that these plans have gone before the 
PRC twice and now all of a sudden these issues are getting dropped on the Planning Board at 
the end - the hammerhead was acceptable at first. 
 Mr. Steffen stated that the Planning Board needs to act on the special permit as well.  
Mr. Steffen discussed the Conservation Commission's recommendation letter at the end of 
December 2012.  He noted that the changes requested in the Conservation Commission’s 
letter have been incorporated in the latest plans. 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 
 March 20, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 

MOTION by Mr. Emerick to grant the special permit in accordance with the Conservation 
Commission’s recommendations letter dated December 27, 2012. 
SECOND by Mr. Loopley.     
Ms. Woolsey would like have a copy the Conservation Commission’s letter. 
VOTE: 6 – 0 – 1 (Woolsey)  MOTION PASSED. 
 

MOTION by Mr. Emerick to conditionally approve the site plan application for what the 
Planning Board has jurisdiction over.  This will include the applicant providing a Mylar and six 
copies of the final plans, approval of the Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Plan (O&M 
Plan), assessment and payment of the multi-family residential impact fee, payment of 
application fees and establishment of a bond for off-site improvements (if needed).   He stated 
that on-site approvals must be approved by the Board of Selectmen.  Ms. Woolsey asked about 
recording the deed and review and approval by Town counsel of the declaration of 
condominium documents and plan.  Mr. Emerick responded that it was a typical part of the 
approval and that will be added as well as escrow in the amount of $500 for the Town 
counsel’s time.  Mr. Lessard noted that will be post-approval as the applicant needs to know if 
they can go forward before getting to that point.  Escrow for construction inspections will be 
added to the conditions as well as a preconstruction meeting to be scheduled.  
SECOND by Mr. Loopley. 
VOTE:  7 – 0 – 0    MOTION PASSED. 
 
 Mr. Lessard asked if abutters to Keefe Avenue will be allowed to speak at the Board of 
Selectmen’s meeting.  Ms. Woolsey stated she did not think so, but any Keefe Avenue people 
may write a letter and drop it off at the Town Office if they have any concerns or questions. 
 
V.  NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
VI. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES of March 6, 2013. 
 

MOTION by Mr. Emerick to approve the March 6, 2013 Minutes. 
SECOND by Mr. Lessard. 
VOTE:  6 – 0 – 1 (Woolsey)  MOTION PASSED. 

 
VI. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 Agenda 21 - Video 
 
 Mr. Emerick discussed Agenda 21.  He noted that Mr. Steffen sent out the link to the 
video for the Planning Board members.  This is the John Birch Society video.  Mr. Emerick 
noted that there is a lot of information on YouTube concerning Agenda 21.  Mr. Emerick 



Page 5 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 
 March 20, 2013 – 7:00 p.m. 

passed out some literature and discussed what ICLEI and Agenda 21 are.  Property rights and 
water rights are addressed.   
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by Mr. Loopley to adjourn. 
SECOND by Mr. Emerick. 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS.  MOTION PASSED. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED:  7:47 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laurie Olivier, Administrative Assistant 
 
 

**PLEASE NOTE** 

ITEMS NOT CALLED OR IN PROGRESS BY 10:00 P.M. 

MAY BE CONTINUED TO THE NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 


